
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call the above in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Regulatory Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 15 November 2011 

Time: 2.30 pm or at the conclusion of the meeting of the 
Regulatory Sub-Committee meeting, whichever is the 
later 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Pete Martens, Committee Manager Planning & Regulatory 
Tel: 01432 260248 
Email: pmartens@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

What is a personal interest? 
 

You have a personal interest in a matter if that 
matter affects the well-being or financial position of 
you, your relatives or people with whom you have a 
close personal association more than it would 
affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to 
which the matter relates. 
A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or 
people with whom you have a close personal 
association positively or negatively. If you or they 
would stand to lose by the decision, you should 
also declare it. 
You also have a personal interest in a matter if it 
relates to any interests, which you must register. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a personal 
interest? 
 

You must declare it when you get to the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as 
soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still 
speak and vote unless it is a prejudicial interest. 
If a matter affects a body to which you have been 
appointed by the authority, or a body exercising 
functions of a public nature, you only need declare 
the interest if you are going to speak on the matter. 
 

What is a prejudicial interest? 
 

You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if; 
a)  a member of the public, who knows the 

relevant facts, would reasonably think your 
personal interest is so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice your judgment of the public 
interest; and 

b)  the matter affects your financial interests or 
relates to a licensing or regulatory matter; 
and 

c)  the interest does not fall within one of the 
exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of 
the Code of Conduct. 

 
What do I need to do if I have a prejudicial 
interest? 
 

If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw 
from the meeting. However, under paragraph 12(2) 
of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public 
are allowed to make representations, give evidence 
or answer questions about that matter, you may 
also make representations as if you were a 
member of the public. However, you must withdraw 
from the meeting once you have made your 
representations and before any debate starts. 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Regulatory 
Committee 
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor JW Hope MBE 
Vice-Chairman Councillor RC Hunt 
  

Councillor CM Bartrum  
Councillor PL Bettington  
Councillor BA Durkin  
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
Councillor PJ McCaull  
Councillor C Nicholls  
Councillor FM Norman  
Councillor GA Powell  

 
  

 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  15 NOVEMBER 2011 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 2  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 5th July, 2011. 

 
 

   
5. REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE POLICY.  LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 AND TOWN 
POLICE CLAUSES ACT 1847   

3 - 92  

   
 To consider implementing the revised Policy for private hire and hackney 

carriage licensing. 
 

 

   
6. REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES FOR 2011/2012   93 - 102  
   
 To consider a review of Hackney Carriage fares. 

 
 

   
7. REGULATORY ACTIVITY OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & TRADING 

STANDARDS   
103 - 116  

   
 To note the main regulatory activities of Environmental Health & Trading 

Standards service for the period 1st April – 30th September 2011) 
 

 

   
8. UPDATE ON ACTIVITY OF COMMUNITY PROTECTION TEAM   117 - 118  
   
 To provide an update on the main activities of the Community Protection 

Team. 
 

 

   





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at the 
southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken to 
ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the building 
following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 



AGENDA ITEM 4

1



2



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Marc Willimont – Regulatory Service Manager on (01432) 261986 

  

  

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 NOVEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE POLICY.  LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS 
PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 AND TOWN POLICE 
CLAUSES ACT 1847.  

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HEALTH & WELLBEING SERVICE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

 

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To consider implementing the revised Policy for private hire and hackney carriage licensing. 

Key Decision 

This is not a key decision  

Introduction and Background 

1. The policy has been reviewed following consultation.  Amendments have been made where 
necessary and communicated back to parties who made responses.  These responses can be 
found at (Appendix 1).  The policy and appendices can be found at  (Appendix 2) 

2. A spoken language and numeracy test has been added to the knowledge test (Appendix 3).  
This was added following consultation with the Diversity Team.   

Key Considerations 

3. Whether to accept the amended policy and the inclusion of a language and numeracy test.  

Key Points Summary 

• Policy reviewed and consulted upon. 

• Spoken language and numeracy test included in the existing knowledge test. 

AGENDA ITEM 5

3



REGULATORY COMMITTEE  

Recommendation 

 THAT Committee: 

  Adopt the proposed policy as it is presented in this report, in accordance 
with the Council’s powers under the legislative provisions mentioned in 
this report. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

4. The licensing authority believes it has considered amendments to the policy carefully, and in 
accordance with the relevant legislation and previous committee hearings and that this fulfils 
the Council’s main aim of protecting public safety and providing clarity for the Trade. 

Alternative Options 

a) The policy not adopted by the Regulatory Committee as presented in this report. 
Advantages: It allows any views of the trade to be taken into an even fuller account, if 
considered appropriate and legal.  
Disadvantages: Not all the proposals put forward by the Association and some independent 
trade members can be legally accepted or are fair to all. The current draft follows a substantive 
consultation exercise.  This alternative will delay the release of the new policy even further. 
 

b) To defer the decision in order to get more information 
The Committee could make a decision to defer the decision. This will allow further information 
to be considered and enable additional advice to be received, whether legal or technical. 
Advantages: Gives the opportunity for further information to be sought.  
Disadvantages: This would delay the decision process and will incur further costs. This 
alternative will also delay the conditions even further. 
 

c) To reach some other decision 
Advantages: This leaves other options open to the Committee to resolve the matter. 
Disadvantages: There are no clear directions from the Head of Environmental Health & 
Trading Standards in respect to alternatives. 
 

Community Impact 

5. It is felt that any decision will have only a minor impact on the community as a whole, as it 
relates specifically to the taxi trade.  

Legal Implications 

6. In amending this policy this Authority has had regard to Government guidance taken from the 
Action Plan for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire, Office of fair trading regulation of licensing 
taxi and PHV services in the UK, the Best practice draft guidance on Taxis and Private Hire 
Vehicles and the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Steering Group. The Policy is consistent 
with Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 which requires the Local Authority to do all 
that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder within its locality.  The policy is consistent 
with the Human Rights Act 1998, the Environmental Protection Act 1992, the Race Relations 
Act 1976, the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, Herefordshire Council’s enforcement 
policy, and the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003.  

 

4



REGULATORY COMMITTEE  

Financial Implications 

 Not applicable 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 –  Responses following consultation 

Appendix 2 -  Policy including Appendices 

Appendix 3 - Spoken language and numeracy test 

Background Papers 

None. 

5



6



APPENDIX1 
 
Consultation response received Response 
1.2 Capital letters for Fair Trading etc Amended 
Page 6 Does this include a single speeding fine Added the word may refer if a serious nature 
Page 7 How do we know which officers are authorised Officers will carry identification and authorisations 

can be checked during normal office hours. 
6.8 Will a notice of appeal be gived Added that a written notice of appeal will be sent 
7.1 Don’t agree no refunds Added unless considered appropriate by committee 
7.2 Need to discuss to allow for starting application 
without all necessary paper work 

Added supporting documentation can be submitted 
at a later date, but plate/badge/licence will not be 
issued until all necessary documentation is received 

8.1(b) Medical objection to passing to occ health 
doctor 

Already discussed. Previous decision sent 

1.3 Would like to discuss Discussed this has not changed since 2007 and has 
not caused a problem 

Page 16(a) Objection to take knowledge test The purpose is to familiarise the perpetrator with the 
conditions of licence.  Added if breaches are 
association with licence conditions. 

3. Capital V Amended 
1.10 Too harsh Not changed as it is a public safety issue and follows 

government guidance 
Page 17  10.1 (a) Would like to discuss Split into not displaying and not in working order 
11.2 Failure to return plate after expiry Added if requested to do so 
11.3 Failure to report loss – driver not always aware Added following discovery of loss 
12.1 Has Council kept a record of advertising Yes since 2007 
17.2 Failure to notify Council of changes of driver Added word permanent changes 
24.4 Disagrees with providing alcoholic drinks not in 
accordance with the sale or supply of alcohol 
legislation 

Licensing Act 2003 Section 149 (3) states A 
person commits an offence if – 
(a) he buys or attempts to buy alcohol on behalf 
of an individual aged under 18 
 
This has been added as it is a growing problem 
at the request of other drivers, who required 
clarification on the matter. 

1.5 How will PH drivers parking in a location without a 
booking – how will this be determined 

In the usual way, by checking if it is near a place 
where the public would expect to see a taxi ie, if 
p/h parked by the Barrels or the back of 
Macdonalds, it could be plying.  If they are parked 
in a car park on Whitecross Road then it wouldn’t 
be. 

10.1 Too harsh as no public safety issue This will be left in as it is a public safety can be 
affected if we can’t send out suspension notices 
for example 

10.4 Too harsh what if in a coma or life 
threatening surely not the most important thing to 
remember  

Added before resuming work as a dual driver 

13.2 Failure to keep vehicle reasonably clean 
D39 
No points allocated 

Added in 2 points 
 

13.3 Failure to notify Council of vehicle damage 
within 72 hours and present vehicle if requested 
to do so D40 6 
Too harsh most damage on a fairly regular basis 
consists of very minor damage 

Added word serious 
 

2.1 Failure to produce evidence of insurance 
cover to the Council O3 4 

There should never be a gap as cover notes are 
issued and can be faxed immediately 

7



Too harsh often a gap between insuring and 
receiving documentation 

 

8.7 Using the words taxi or cab without having at 
least 70% of the fleet licensed as hackney 
carriages. O16 2 
This only relates to advertising but not on a 
vehicle 

Added word company advertising 
 
 

7. (b) Failure to proceed to another rank when at 
the time of arrival rank is full B7 2 
NB Unless there are enough rank spaces this will 
mean going around in circles 

A hackney can be hailed in the street, therefore it 
is not the norm to provide full ranking for all 
licensed hackneys.  We will always consider 
suggestions for new ranks. 

Page 24 17. Failure to deposit lost property to the 
offices of the Council within 48 hours of discovery 
B15 2 
Would like to discuss 
 

Have added Police.  Operators must pass lost 
property in as the passenger may have got the 
taxi off the rank and not know which company it 
is.  I am aware a lot of operators do  not hand it 
in. 

18. Plying for hire whilst static at a place which is 
not a rank B16 3 
What if in a traffic queue and a person asks you 
to pull over etc 

Presumably you do not ply for hire whilst in a 
traffic queue, if you are hailed that is not an 
offence. 

  
 
 
 
 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



APPENDIX 3 

$ketwfywh.doc   July 2011 

 

TAXI LICENSING 

English & Numeracy test for HC & PH Driver 

Applicant Name and signature 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
Name of Examiner(s): ________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Assessment:  _______________  Identity proven      
 
Start time:    Finish Time: 
 
In order to pass this test, candidates must answer correctly 15 out of 17 questions in Section 1, i.e. 
88% and 5 out of 5 questions, i.e. 100%, in Section 2. 
 
Section 1 – Spoken English 
1. Examiner asks applicant all 10 of the following questions.  The applicant’s response 

will ascertain the applicant’s understanding of spoken English in a general context: 

No. Question Understanding 
Low / Med / Full 

1 What is your address? 
 
 

     0        1        2 

2 How long have you lived there? 
 
 

 

3 Tell me what hobbies or interests you have? 
 
 

 

4 Please tell me how you travelled here today – what route did 
you follow? 
 
 

 

5 Describe the type of work you have done over the past year? 
 
 

 

6 What sports, if any, do you watch or play and why? 
 
 

 

7 What type of TV programmes do you like to watch and why? 
 
 

 

8 Where in the world would you most like to visit and why?  
 
 

 

 

89



APPENDIX 3 

$ketwfywh.doc   July 2011 

9 How many years have you been driving for? 
 
 

 

10 What car would you buy if you had unlimited money and 
why? 
 
 

 

 
2. Examiner advises applicant that the following phrases are those that they may 

come across when working as a hackney carriage or private hire driver. 
 
Examiner selects 7 of the following phrases and reads each one out, one at a time, 
and after each sentence, asks the applicant what they think it means. 

No. Question – What does the following mean…… Understanding 
Low / Med / Full 

1 Have you got change of a tenner? 
 
 

 

2 There’s another drop off after mine. 
 
 

 

3 Why have you charged me too much? 
 
 

 

4 I’m going to throw up! 
 
 

 

5 Can I have a receipt for the fare please? 
 
 

 

6 This isn’t the way I normally go. 
 
 

 

7 Don’t you ever clean your cab? 
 
 

 

8 Can I bring my guide dog? 
 
 

 

9 How much will it be? 
 
 

 

10 Can I smoke in this car? 
 
 

 

11  I need to get some money from the hole in the wall. 
 
 

 

 
 

90



APPENDIX 3 

$ketwfywh.doc   July 2011 

3. Examiner advises applicant that the following signs are those that they may come 
across when working as a hackney carriage or private hire driver. 

 
Examiner selects 3 of the following signs, one at a time, and after each, asks the 
applicant what they think it means. 

 
 

    
 
 

       
 

      

91



APPENDIX 3 

$ketwfywh.doc   July 2011 

Section 2 – Numeracy 
 
1. Examiner asks the applicant 5 of the following questions: 

No. Question Applicant’s 
Answer 

 YES / NO 

1 What is the change from £20 for a fare of £6.50? £13.50  

2 What is the change from £15 for a fare of £11.20? £3.80  

3 What is the change from £10 for a fare of £4.60? £5.40  

4 What is the change from £50 for a fare of £32.20? £17.80  

5 What is the change from £5 for a fare of £3.90? £1.10  

6 What is the change from £20 for a fare of £8.50? £11.50  

7 What is the change from £30 for a fare of £23.00? £7.00  

8 What is the change from £10 for a fare of £3.80? £6.20  

9 What is the change from £20 for a fare of £17.40? £2.60  

10 What is the change from £25 for a fare of £22.50? £2.50  

 

COMMENTS. 

_______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________   

 

Examiner Signature ___________________________________________ 

PRINT NAME: 

Pass Fail 

 

92



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Marc Willimont – Licensing Officer on (01432) 261986 
  

  

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 NOVEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES 
FOR 2011/2012   

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HEALTH & WELLBEING SERVICE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

1. To consider a review of Hackney Carriage fares. 

Key Decision 

This is not a key decision  

Legal Implications 

2. Section 65(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 allows the local 
authority to fix the rates/fares within the Authority for time, distance and all other charges in 
connection with the fare of a vehicle or with the arrangements for the hire of a vehicle, by 
means of a table of fares. 

 
3. Section 65(2)(a) dictates a minimum 14 day period for consultation. If no objections are 

received then fare changes can take effect from the specified date. If objections are made or if 
objections are not withdrawn the Local Authority must set a further date not later than two 
months after the date specified for the changes in fares to take effect, following consideration 
of the objections at the Regulatory Committee.  

Key Points Summary 

• A request for increase was received from the Taxi Association for a review of the taxi fares.   

• There was no increase in taxi fares during the period 2010/2011.  The last time the fares were 
increased was in August 2008. 

• A second advert was placed for a period of one week with two weeks consultation;  This re-
advert was necessary to comply with the legislation as the original advert did not have the 
correct dates for objections.  This was an error on the part of the Agency who the Council uses 
to advertise.   

AGENDA ITEM 6

93



• No objections had been received at the time of writing the report.  Therefore, the date of 
commencement will be 17th November 2011. 

• Fuel price trend is shown as a graph. 

Petrol price increase from 2010 to present day

£0.00

£0.20

£0.40

£0.60

£0.80

£1.00

£1.20

£1.40

£1.60

Ja
n-
10

Ma
r-1
0

Ma
y-
10

Ju
l-1
0

Se
p-
10

No
v-1
0

Ja
n-
11

Ma
r-1
1

Ma
y-
11

Ju
l-1
1

Se
p-
11

Month 

C
o
st

Cost Per Litre

 

• Car Insurance price trend shown as a graph.  Over 12 months the premium has risen by 
30.1%.  Price rise now falling slowly. 

 

94



Key Considerations 

4. If the fares should remain unaltered or reset, as a change either by increase or decrease. 

Recommendation(s) 

5. THAT Committee: 

 (a) Review the information within this report and consider any additional information 
provided at this Hearing. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

6. The licensing authority believes it has carefully considered current trends in local fuel prices 
and increases in insurance costs.  In accordance with the relevant legislation, it wishes to fulfil 
the Local Authority’s obligation to set a maximum fare for Hackney Carriages.   

Alternative Options 

a) The fares be increased as presented. 
Advantages: This option is preferred by the Taxi Association.   
Disadvantages: The Trade report that business is slow at present, any increase could further 
depress the market. 
Reason for rejection: Although this has been considered it has not been recommended as 
the Licensing Authority it is appropriate to increase the fares as there has been no rise since 
2009. 
 

b) To defer the decision in order to get more information 
The Committee could make a decision to defer the decision. This will allow further information 
to be considered and advice given. 
Advantages: Gives the opportunity for further information to be sought.  
Disadvantages: This would delay the decision process and will incur further costs. 
Reason for rejection: It is felt that any information required to reach a decision has been 
provided within the report or can be discussed during the present meeting. 
 

c) To reach some other decision 
Advantages: This leaves other options open to the Committee to resolve the matter. 
Disadvantages: There are no clear directions from the Head of Environmental Health & 
Trading standards in respect of the application. 
Reason for rejection: It is difficult to envisage what other decision could be reached. 

Community Impact 

7. It is felt that any decision made will have a measurable financial impact on both the taxi users 
and the trade within the community. 

Financial Implications 

8. Not applicable for Council. 

Appendices 

9. Appendix 1 – Taxi fare sheet 2011 - 2012  

95



Appendix 2 – AA cost of running a domestic vehicle. 

Background Papers 

10. No background papers are available. 

96



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES 2011/2012 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Herefordshire Council in accordance with Section 65 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 propose to set the maximum fare charged in a 
licensed Hackney Carriage for the period 2011/2012 as follows: current fares shown in italics. 
Tariff One        Inclusive of VAT 
For each journey not exceeding 819 (950) metres   £2.60 (£2.60) 
For each subsequent 74.5 (80) metres or part thereof   £0.10 (£0.10) 
Waiting time for each period of 29 (25) seconds or part thereof £0.10 (£0.10) 
Tariff Two 
For hirings begun between 11.00pm and 8.00am and public  150% of Tariff One 
Holidays other than Christmas and New Year 
Tariff Three 
For hirings begun between 11.00pm on 24th December to 8.00am 200% of Tariff One 
On 27th December and 11.00pm on 31st December to 8.00am 
On 2nd January  
Extra Charges 
For each package other than hand luggage    £0.30 (£0.20) 
For each bicycle or perambulator     £0.30 (£0.20) 
For each person in excess of two     £0.60 (£0.50) 
For cleaning a vehicle where it has been fouled by passengers £75.00 (£50.00) 
A copy of this notice will be deposited at the Taxi Licensing Unit, County Offices, Bath Street, 
Hereford HR1 2ZF, and will be open to public inspection without payment during normal office hours. 
Any objections to the proposed increases should be made in writing stating the reason therefore and 
be sent the undersigned at the address above by the 16th November 2011. 
If no objections are made or if all objections so made are withdrawn, the proposed increase shall 
come into operation on 17th November 2011, or at the date of withdrawal of the last objection, 
whichever is the later, subject to approval of elected members. 
If objections are duly made and not withdrawn, the Herefordshire Council, shall set a further date not 
later than two months after the date specified above on which the proposed increases shall take 
effect with or without modifications, as decided by Herefordshire Council after consideration of any 
objections. 
 
Dated this 25th day of October 2011   
 
If you require a copy please telephone Ms C Berrow on 01432 260105.  
 

97



98



99



100



101



102



 

 
For further information please contact 

Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 
 
 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE  

DATE: 15 NOVEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REGULATORY ACTIVITY OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
HEALTH & TRADING STANDARDS 

PORTFOLIO: HEALTH & WELLBEING 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

Countywide 

Purpose 

To note the main regulatory activities of Environmental Health & Trading Standards service 
for the first half of 2011/12 (period April – September 2011) for the following service areas: 

i. Environmental Protection Team,  

ii. Licensing Team,  

iii. Air, Land & Water Protection Team,  

iv. Pest control Team 

v. Gypsy Traveller Team, 

vi. Trading Standards Teams, 

vii. Environmental Health (Commercial) Team and the 

viii. Animal Health & Welfare Team. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

103



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

LICENSING TEAM 

The Licensing Team encompasses key areas such as:- 

• Taxi Licensing 

• Licensing Act (pubs and clubs and events) 

• General Licensing (animal boarding, street collections etc) 

• Gambling Act licensing 

1. During the period 1st April – 30th Sept 2011 the Officers’ Taxi Panel has met on five 
occasions and dealt with the following matters: 

i. applications for a County Transport Badge – 9 

ii. applications for hackney carriage/private hire drivers licence – 6 

iii. suspension of a hackney carriage/private hire drivers licence - 1 

iv. disciplinary matters regarding the holder of a hackney carriage/private hire 
drivers licence - 1  

Where necessary, these are referred onto the Sub Regulatory or Regulatory 
Committee. 

2. During the period 1st April – 30th Sept 2011 and since new arrangements came into 
effect, the Sub-Committee has met on eight occasions and has dealt with the matters 
referred to it as follows: 

:2011/12 Reviews held by Sub Committees 

April 20th April 2011 

• Preliminary points to consider regarding 'Big Chill Festival’, Eastnor Castle, 
Deer Park, Ledbury 
 

• Application for a new premises licence 'Big Chill Festival’, Eastnor  
Castle, Deer Park, Ledbury 

 

26th April 2011 

• Application for variation of a premises licence Malthurst Northside 
 Service Station, Hereford Road, Hope Under Dinmore 
 

• Application for the grant of a licensed premises gaming machine  
permit for 4 machines, in respect of The Duke's Head, Corn Square,  
Leominster 
 

Suspension notice served on a hackney carriage/private hire driver   

May 13th May 2011 

104



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

• Application for a review of the premises licence The Prince Of Wales,  
Church Lane, Ledbury 

 
• Application for a review of the premises licence The Bell Inn, 39 Etnam 

 Street, Leominster 
 

• Application for a review of the premises licence The Man Of  
Ross, Wye Street, Ross-On-Wye 

 
25th May 2011 
 
• Application for an expedited review Raduni Indian Cuisine, 66 The  

Homend, Ledbury 
 
31st May 2011 
 
• Representations against interim steps - expedited review  

Raduni Indian Cuisine, 66 The Homend, Ledbury 
 

105



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

 

June 17th June 2011 

• Full review Raduni Indian Cuisine, 66 The Homend, Ledbury 

• Application for variation of premises licence Mcdonalds Restaurant,  
Belmont Road, Hereford 

• Expedited/summary licence review of Premises Licence Korai Ltd, t/a 
Raduni Indian Cuisine, 66 The Homend, Ledbury 

• To determine if a driver continued to be a fit and proper person to hold 
a hackney carriage/private hire drivers licence following his 
suspension 

23rd June 2011 

• Application for a premises licence Beer On The Wye (2011), Hereford 
 Rowing Club, Greyfriars Avenue, Hereford 
 

• Application For Grant Of Premises Licence ‘Beer On The Wye 
(2011), Hereford Rowing Club, Greyfriars Avenue, Hereford -  
Licensing Act 2003 
 

28th June 2011 

• Further matters following the expedited/summary licence review of 
premises licence Korai Ltd, T/A Raduni Indian Cuisine, 66 The 
Homend, Ledbury 

• Application to re-instate an expired hackney carriage vehicle licence 

• Application for variation of premises licence Shooter's Bar Grafton 
House, Leominster 
 

• Application for a motor salvage operator’s licence 

 

July 19th July 2011 

• Notification of Temporary Event Notice in respect of Handlands Cross 
Farm,Lulham, Herefordshire and the issue of an Objection Notice 
given by the Chief Officer of Police for West Mercia.’ -  Licensing Act 
2003 

August No hearings / committees 

106



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

 

Sept 6th September 2011 

• Application for grant of a Premises Licence ‘The Queens Arms,  
30 High Street, Bromyard, HR7 4AE – Licensing Act 2003 
 

• Application to licence a hackney carriage vehicle outside standard 
 condition 5.2 (i) 
 

16th September 2011 

• Application for variation of a Premises Licence ‘The Prince Of Wales’, Church 
Lane, Ledbury  – Licensing Act 2003 

• Application for grant of a Premises Licence Bromyard Rugby Football 
Club, Tenbury Road, Bromyard – Licensing act 2003 

29th September 2011 

• Expedited/summary licence review of premises licence: Natalka 
Polskie Delikstsey, 22 Eign Street, Hereford 

 

.    

3. In addition to the above review work, the licensing team deals with many enquiries 
and complaints from the public. In 2010/11 there were 2997 service requests and by 
the end of Sept 2011 there have so far been 1259 service requests this year, 
comparing to 1552 for this same period last year. Therefore, although the work rates 
remain high, the trend implies that licensing activity is slightly down on last year, 
which probably reflects the economic situation for licensed premises. The workloads 
and trends are shown in the graph below. 

2010/11 and 2011/12 Service requests

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Ap
r
M
ay Ju

n Ju
l
Au
g

Se
p

Oc
t
No
v
De
c

Ja
n
Fe
b

M
ar

2010/11 Service
Requests

2011/12 Service
Requests

 

107



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

4. In 2010/11 there were 2732 licensing transactions (granting of licences and 
variations etc). By the end of Sept 2011, we have so far had 1256 transactions 
comparing to 1303 for this same period last year. Therefore transaction totals remain 
high. The transaction workloads and trends are shown in the graph below. 

2010/11 and 2011/12 Transactions

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

A
pr

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

2010/11 Transactions

2011/12 Transactions

 

Night Time Enforcement Work 

5. The Licensing Team have undertaken a number of night time joint enforcement 
inspections with the police. Operation ‘Verify’ related to the procedures used by the 
city’s pubs and clubs to challenge underage entry and sales of alcohol. Operation 
“Hansom” involved the Council’s licensing officers and police checking taxis and 
challenging taxi drivers who are not using the city’s taxi ranks legally. There will be 
further joint operations during the weeks before Christmas, hopefully including a trial 
taxi marshalling scheme on 25/26th November and 2/3rd December 2011. 

Festivals and Regulatory Work 

6. A number of festivals during the summer months required extra regulatory effort in 
order to ensure compliance. Of particular note was the Big Chill Festival which was 
held in early August for 5 days. This event catered for 22,500 people and 
complaints/incidents were minimised by 24/7 enforcement work by EHOs and 
Licensing officers. Another Big Chill festival is scheduled for next year and work has 
already commenced in relation to its licence. 

Underage Test purchases  

7. The Licensing Team worked closely with the police and the Trading Standards Team 
in the continuation of covert underage test purchase of alcohol in licensed premises.  

8. The results of this operation imply that there has been a marked improvement, as 
initially in 2010 the fail rate was as high as 40%, whereas the most recent levels are 
now as low as 5% or less.  

9. Although this may be in part due to the licensed trade better detecting covert 
operations, it is probable that the shop keepers and door staff at the pubs and clubs 
have markedly improved their challenge of the under-aged, particularly for those 
premises that have had their licences reviewed as a consequence. 

108



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

10. In order to measure the outcomes from this licensing work, the team receives regular 
data from the NHS in relation to A&E admissions related to alcohol. The graph below 
is derived from this data and clearly shows the linkage between joint licensing/trading 
standards covert test purchasing for under aged persons, which was initiated in 
December 2010 (see later section on trading standards for dates of these events). 

11. The graph below plots A & E alcohol related admission data to monitor the number of 
people under 18 who have sought medical attention from the hospital, typically on 
Friday and Saturday nights. 

A&E Admissions: Under Aged Alcohol  Admissions- Hereford County Hospital

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2010 2011

A&E Under Aged Alcohol
Admissions

Linear (A&E Under Aged
Alcohol Admissions)

 
The consequences of not undertaking Licensing Regulation 

13. Should Herefordshire Council not undertake licensing work, it would: 

• Lose the opportunity to protect the health and wellbeing of the public insofar as the 
Licensing Act’s four licensing objectives are concerned, namely: 

i. crime and disorder 

ii. protection of children from harm 

iii. public nuisance (noise) 

iv. public safety (health & safety at events) 

• Lose the opportunity to protect the safety of the travelling public by not screening taxi 
drivers as being ‘fit & proper’, by not ensuring that vehicles are safe and by not 
ensuring vehicles have disabled access. 

• Lose the opportunity to properly regulate and control gambling activities as well as 
the un-restrict of sex establishments. 

• Lose the opportunity to protect the welfare of animals for licensed animal 
establishments / pet shops etc. 

• Be liable to financial compensation from the Ombudsman and subject to judicial 
review. 

• Lose income in the region of £370k per year.  

109



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION TEAM 

14 The Environmental Protection Team encompasses key areas such as:- 

• Noise nuisance – investigation and service of abatement notices 

• Other nuisances – e.g. odour, dust, smoke etc 

• High Hedge complaints 

• Burial of deceased without means 

• Smoke offences – e.g. Clean Air Act and dark smoke offences 

• Drainage – clearance of drains and sewers and broken septic tanks 

• Public Health – clearance of land or housing with rats, mice or rubbish 

• Planning Consultations 

• Licensing Consultations 

15  In the calendar year of 2010/11 there were 1932 service requests in total. 

16. During the period April – end Sept 2011 there have so far been 1413 service 
requests compared to 1028 for the same period last year, therefore workloads have 
increased. 

17. The graph below helps show the seasonality and long term trend compared to the 
previous year. 

Number of Env Protection Service Requests

0
50
100
150
200
250
300
350

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug
us
t

S
ep
te
m
be
r

O
ct
ob
er

N
ov
em

be
r

D
ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu
ar
y

F
eb
ru
ar
y

M
ar
ch

2009 2010 2011 2012

Service Requests

 

18. 488 of the 1413 service requests relate to noise which equates to about 35%. The 
team ran a “Noise Action Week” initiative in May 2011, which might have affected this 
data. 

110



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

19. The team also operated a night time ‘Noise Response Team’ from July to September 
as an 8 week trial, working from 9pm to 2am on Fridays and Saturdays. Over this 
period, 57 calls were received about 47 different premises showing significant public 
usage. Feedback from the public, police and housing associations has been very 
positive and we will be looking to fund this in the summer of 2012 from savings made 
elsewhere in the service, keeping the team cost neutral.  

20. During the period April – end Sept 2011 the following statutory notices were served 
by the Environmental Protection Team 

Type of Statutory Notice Number Served since 1st April 2011 

Drainage Notices 4 

Noise Abatement Notices 5 

(including on a bag pipe player in the street) 

High Hedge Notices 2 

Unsecured Property 1 

TOTAL 11 

 

21. Following joint working with the police and Herefordshire Housing Association, noise 
equipment was also seized from a house in Hoarwithy Road, Lower Bullingham. 

22. Of notable interest for out-of-hours work during this period, a notice was served on a 
rave near Marstow over a weekend in July which led to immediate compliance and a 
flat in Ross on Wye had to be cleared of rubbish on a Sunday afternoon to enable the 
police and undertakers to remove a deceased person who had sadly died some 4 
weeks earlier. 

The consequences of not undertaking Environmental Protection Regulation 

23. Should Herefordshire Council not undertake environmental protection work, it would: 

• Miss the opportunity to protect the public by not resolving statutory nuisance 
complaints (like noise nuisance) in a timely fashion which could invariably affect their 
health and wellbeing through depression, stress and lack of sleep. 

• Not bury or cremate ‘unclaimed’ persons who have died outside of hospital or nursing 
homes, creating a serious public health situation with significant public outcry. 

• De-restriction of smoke offences, affecting the health & wellbeing of persons prone to 
respiratory conditions. 

• Not resolve overflowing and defective drainage, creating public health problems. 

• Not require the clearance of rubbish and rat infested land, again leading to public 
health problems. 

• Planning and licensing consultations would not be answered, leaving the planning 

111



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

service and licensing team prone to ombudsman complaints. 

• As most functions are statutory, ombudsman complaints would almost certainly be 
received for a significant percentage of the 2000 or so service requests received 
each year. Recent investigation and research into average ombudsman outcomes 
elsewhere implies that this could cost the service something in the region of £1m / 
annum if 50% of the claims were successful, resulting far in excess of the total 
service cost which is £265k. 

AIR, LAND & WATER PROTECTION TEAM  

The Air, Land & Water Protection Team encompasses key areas such as:- 

• Closed landfill site management – monitoring and project managing engineering works 
etc. 

• Contaminated land – responses on planning applications and investigations 

• Private and mains water supply monitoring and regulation 

• Industrial pollution control – issuing of environmental permits for large factories 

• Air Quality – monitoring and assessment of air quality across the county 

• Seagulls – managing the contract for egg and nest removal 

 

24. Although much of this team’s remit is not enforcement based, during April – Sept 2011 the 
following regulatory work was undertaken by this team: 

25. 112 planning Consultations undertaken for potential contamination. 

26. There were 641 water samples taken from private supplies resulting in only 24 notices 
having to be served to improve unfit / unwholesome supplies. 

27.  Approximately 3800 landfill monitoring exercises were undertaken at the county’s closed 
landfill sites. These sites are owned by the council and sampling is undertaken to ensure 
legal compliance with the Environment Agency’s requirements. 

28. The seagull control programme was started in April and continued until the end of August 
2011. The contractors report on the number of eggs taken and nests removed and this data 
implies that the actions taken are still having a marked effect on the colonies in Hereford. 
This year, industry and business are contributing to the cost of running this service. BBC 
Hereford & Worcester have featured this service. 

29. 11 industrial pollution control inspections have so far been made to 86 permitted processes 
and factories countywide. New permits have also been drafted for two processes. Most of 
the risk assessment based inspection work is scheduled for the Nov – March period. 

112



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

The consequences of not undertaking Air, Land & Water Protection Regulation 

30. Should Herefordshire Council not undertake this specialist environmental protection work, it 
would: 

• Be liable to prosecution from the Environment Agency for not managing its closed 
landfill sites. It would also be liable to compensation from the public should gas 
migration or leaching of contamination into the aquifer cause harm to public health or 
property. 

• Miss the opportunity to ensure that the county’s 2,700 private water supplies are 
wholesome and do not cause any public health incidents or outbreaks 

• Leave the council liable to a compensation claim via the ombudsman for not annually 
reviewing and assessing its air quality and acting upon this. 

• The seagull population of 500 – 600 pairs in Hereford would increase from its static 
level by about 10 – 20% each year, as is occurring in comparable cities which do not 
have a management programme in place. 

• Lose about £40k income from unregulated and unpermitted industrial 
processes/factories and about £42k income from recharged water sampling. 

 

GYPSY & TRAVELLER TEAM 

31. Although much of this team’s remit is the management of the six council owned gypsy & 
traveller sites across the county, during the period April to end Sept 2011 there have been 
12 illegal encampments moved on from council owned land by this team. 

The consequences of not undertaking traveller regulation 

32. Should Herefordshire Council not undertake a traveller service, it would lead to: 

• Unauthorised encampments on council owned land within Herefordshire which would 
remain in situ and unchallenged, unless undertaken by that specific part of the council. 

• Closure of council managed sites which would lead to more unauthorised encampments. 

• Loss of income from site rents in the order of £104k. 

PEST CONTROL TEAM 

33. The Pest control team deals with the eradication of most domestic pest infestations through 
treatment and prevention. They also operate a number of contracts with businesses for pest 
control services including the council’s crematorium and cemeteries. During the period April – 
Sept 2011 the team has: 

• Responded to 1819 service requests ranging from wasps fleas, rats, mice and moles 
• Has circa 120 contracts in place with businesses for pest control  
• Actual income is currently tracking about £20k down from 2010/11 due to a poor 

wasp season, although the team is still expecting to reach about £120k income at 
year end against its predicted £134k. 

 

113



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

34. The team continues to assist the Environmental Protection Team with regulatory work about 
overgrown gardens and land and is also available on call in case of any unforeseen public 
health incident or outbreak requiring immediate pest control treatment. 

The consequences of not undertaking a pest control function 

35. Should Herefordshire Council not undertake a pest control service, it would lead to: 

• A loss of circa £135k income (at current rates) per year. 

• An inability for the council to quickly react and respond to any public health incident 
associated with insects or rodents. 

 

TRADING STANDARDS TEAM 

 

The Trading Standards service encompasses key areas such as :- 

i. Consumer safety - ensuring the safety of consumer goods and the ‘CE’ mark. 

ii. Food standards and agriculture standards – advising businesses on food 
labelling ensuring that composition and description are correct and truthful 
including animal feeding stuffs relating to labelling and composition . 

iii. Fair trading relating to numerous commercial practices including consumer 
credit, packaging , green claims, time share etc., and especially protecting the 
elderly and vulnerable against cold calling and rogue traders 

iv. Metrology – ensuring that weights and measures used in trade are correct 
and that suitable equipment is used, checking the quantity of goods sold 
ranging from bread to petrol 

v. Licensing of Petroleum & explosive storage 

vi. Advice to business and support to consumers 

 

36. The team has undertaken a number of prosecutions from April – end Sept 2011. This 
includes:  

• 2 x cases about misleading omissions – resulting in two £500 fines and £500 
costs to the Council 

• 2 x cases about engaging in unfair commercial practice: - resulting in 
compensation to the victims of £18,200 and £1,600 with £400 costs awarded 
to the council. 

• 1 x licensing case for sale to an under-aged person – resulting in a 
prosecution, fine of £515. 

37. In the April to September period the team has also dealt with 437 complaints and undertaken 
62 samples. 

38. Test purchases using underage persons have been undertaken over a number of weekends 
throughout the April to end of Sept period, utilising trading standards officers, 

114



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

licensing staff and police. These have been covert operations primarily to check 
compliance for underage alcohol sales from both shops/off licences and pubs in both 
Hereford and the market towns. If a contravention occurs, this is followed up with a 
review to the Sub Regulatory Committee under the Licensing Act. Initial underage 
alcohol test purchase operations for pubs revealed a disturbingly high 40% failure 
rate, which contrasts with the more recent rates which are below 5%, implying that 
pubs are now much more compliant. Test purchasing will therefore continue to 
ensure this trend remains favourable. 

39. Other test purchasing has been for tobacco, with firework sales planned for 
October/November. 

40. The team hopes to continue leading the ‘Crucial Crew’ initiative into 2012, whereby schools 
are visited and healthy lifestyles are encouraged, including the discouragement of 
smoking and excessive alcohol / binge drinking.  

41. Business advice is also regularly provided, which ensures compliance without the need for 
enforcement. This is favourable received with good feedback from customer 
satisfaction questionnaires. 

The consequences of not undertaking a trading standards service 

42. Should Herefordshire Council not undertake a trading standards service, it would lead to: 

a. Herefordshire would become known as an easy county to operate in as a 
rogue trader, leading to vulnerable society members becoming more targeted, 
affecting their health & wellbeing. 

b. Premises would be unchecked for the sale of alcohol, tobacco and fireworks 
to the underaged, and the likelihood of this happening would undoubtedly 
increase as this became known to the trade. 

c. Ombudsman compensation claims  

d. Reputational risk to the council 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH (COMMERCIAL) TEAM 

43. The commercial team encompasses key areas such as:- 

• Food hygiene - ensuring basic food hygiene of food registered premises as well 
as promotion of ‘Scores on the Doors’ indicating a star rating of premises, 
provision of business advice and support to new and existing businesses 

• Health & Safety at Work – providing advice and assistance to businesses, 
investigating accidents and fatalities and instigating criminal prosecutions 

• Dealing with infectious disease notifications and outbreak investigations 

• Ensuring Smoke Free Workplaces 

115



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Acting Head of Environmental Protection and Licensing on 01432 261986 

Consequences of not undertaking a food/health & safety/infectious disease function 

44.Should Herefordshire Council not undertake a environmental health (commercial) service, it 
would lead to: 

• Potential outbreaks of food borne diseases such as E. Coli O157, legionella, 
salmonella etc. 

• Other infectious disease outbreaks would not be investigated and contained. 

• Food complaints (e.g. mouldy unfit meat) etc would go unchallenged and would lead 
to serious public health issues. 

• Accidents and fatalities at work would increase as businesses become aware of no 
regulation. 

• Smoking would gradually return into commercial premises, as employers become 
aware that there is no regulation any more. 

 

ANIMAL HEALTH & WELFARE TEAM 

 

45. The Animal Health & Welfare team deal with farms, livestock and farmers to ensure that 
disease control measures are in place and are adhered to, providing support and guidance 
in relation to animal health & welfare legislation, the control of animal by-products, bovine TB 
notifications, livestock market surveillance, transport of animals, primary food producers and 
welfare of animals on farm. 

46. The team had to deal with one suspected avian flu case in July which turned out to be 
negative. Most notably it also had to handle a more recent suspected anthrax case near 
Hereford which again proved to be negative. In both cases the necessary Defra protocol was 
followed and the required action plans initiated. 

Consequences of not undertaking an animal health function 

47. Should Herefordshire Council not undertake an animal health service, it would lead to: 

• Potential outbreaks of animal related infectious diseases such as foot and mouth and 
avian flu no longer being effectively controlled at a local level. 

• Welfare issues going unchallenged at both the market and the farm. 

 

 

116



 

 
For further information please contact 

Shane Hancock, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261752 
 
 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE  

DATE: 15 NOVEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: UPDATE ON ACTIVITY OF COMMUNITY 
PROTECTION TEAM 

PORTFOLIO: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (HOMES & 
COMMUNITIES) 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

Countywide 

Purpose 

To provide an update on the main activities of the Community Protection Team for the period 
June to August 2011. 

Summary of Key Activities 

1. Fly-tipping 

The team investigated 187 fly-tips in this period as compared to 205 in the same period 
last year. Year to date there is a 12.4% reduction in reported incidents. 

86 Duty of Care inspections were carried out during this period, designed to ensure that 
producers of commercial waste have appropriate arrangements in place for its correct 
disposal. 

Two Fixed Penalty Notices were issued for failing to produce waste transfer notes. 

2. Litter 

The team dealt with 97 litter related incidents/reports as compared to 174 in the same 
period last year. This represents a year to date reduction of 44% in reported incidents. 
This is hopefully a positive reflection on the environmental impact the team is having 
through the various campaigns it had led over the last 12 months.  

Ten Fixed Penalty Notices were issued during this period for litter offences. 

3. Fly-posting 

17 incidents of fly-posting were dealt with resulting in advice being given and the removal 

AGENDA ITEM 8

117



For further information please contact 
Shane Hancock, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261752 

of the ‘offending’ poster(s) where appropriate. 

4. Abandoned vehicles 

A total of 33 reports were received about abandoned vehicles. 30 of these were resolved 
without the need for formal action. Three vehicles were removed using statutory powers. 

5. Dog Control  

116 stray dogs were seized during this period. 65 of these (56%) were returned to their 
owner upon payment of costs. One dog was destroyed and the remainder re-homed. 

6. Intelligence-led patrols 

The team carried out 137 intelligence-led patrols around littering and dog-fouling issues 
specifically. 

7. Initiatives 

During July and August BBC Hereford & Worcester ran a series of broadcasts on the 
issue of fly-tipping, with their reporter shadowing one of the Community Protection Team 
officers through an investigation. This acted as a pre-cursor to a month long initiative 
launched on 3rd September aimed at educating householders about their duty of care 
responsibilities with regards to household waste. 

8. Cautions/Prosecutions 

During this period 4 people received formal cautions for fly-tipping. 

One defendant, Gregory Mark EVERALL, was prosecuted on 25th August for an 
aggravated littering offence. Over a two year period he had habitually driven to a remote 
spot at Gibralter Quarry, Orleton, where he had drunk up to 8 cans of beer a time and 
deposited the empty cans in the same location. This had resulted in an accumulation of 
literally hundreds of cans. Following an operation by the Community Protection Team, 
supported by the Police, EVERALL was witnessed committing the offence. The Police 
prosecuted for driving with excess alcohol. For the littering offence he was given a 
conditional discharge for 12 months (mitigation around personal circumstances 
influenced this), but costs of £1,291.00 were awarded. 

On 26th August two defendants, Craig PRITCHARD and Shaun BRUTON, were 
convicted in their absence for littering offences (throwing down cigarette butts) witnessed 
by Community Protection Team Officers who had a little earlier spoken with them and 
given them ‘stubbies’ (portable ashtrays) as a part of a campaign. Each was fined 
£150.00 plus £100.00 costs.  

 

 

 

118


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	5 REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE POLICY.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 AND TOWN POLICE CLAUSES ACT 1847
	[5A] Table of consultation responses 11 11
	Draft Taxi Licensing policy with Appendix - word (3)
	[5C] HCPH Driver - spoken English and numeracy test

	6 REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES FOR 2011/2012
	[6] Advert for fees increase 2011 - 2012 for press
	[6]petrol2011
	[6]diesel2011

	7 REGULATORY ACTIVITY OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & TRADING STANDARDS
	8 update on activity of community protection team

